Minutes of the Third Meeting of the Nurse Practitioners Technical Review

Committee
May 2, 2025
3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

Members Participating Members Absent Staff

Jeffrey Wienke Jr. DPM, CWSP (Chair) Joshua Schlote B.A.S., LVT, VTES  Maggie Mills

Christine Chasek, PhD, LIMHP, LADC Monica Gissler Webb

Ally Dering-Anderson, BA, PharmD, FaAIM, FAPhA

Darrell Klein, J.D., B.A.

Wendy McCarty, Ed. D

Stacy Waldron, PhD

Call to Order: Open Meetings Law, Approval of Agenda, Approval of Minutes

Chairperson Wienke called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. Members of the
committee and the public were made aware of the Open Meetings Law, as they were
both posted online and in the meeting room. A roll call vote was taken, six of the
committee members were present, one was absent. Dr. Wienke asked for a motion
to approve the agenda. Dr. Dering-Anderson made a motion to approve, seconded
by Darrell Klein. Dr. Wienke asked for a motion to approve the minutes with revisions
from committee members. Darrell Klein made a motion, seconded by Dr. Dering-
Anderson.

Follow-up on information requests from Technical Review Committee

Dr. Wenner began by explaining that they had removed from the application that they
would change the Medical Radiation Act and add Chapter 25, as the CRNAs did.
She added that they revised the language to specify that if they are directing, it is
solely a medical radiographer and used for procedural guidance as the Nebraska
Medical Association had suggested.

To address the concerns surrounding uncredentialed facilities, the applicant group
thought to add in language stating that if a nurse practitioner is utilizing fluoroscopy
in an uncredentialed facility, then they must provide a list of procedures performed



upon request to the Board of Radiological Health. She continued by saying that that
is a requirement under the Radiation Act and that they keep that to provide oversight.
Dr. Dering- Anderson suggested listing the oversight group as the State or the
Department that way they can change it, if necessary, to be within regulation.

The applicant group introduced their addition to the Nurse Practice Act, that reading,
“ A nurse practitioner may direct, perform, and utilize fluoroscopy for procedural
guidance and for the performance of authorized duties upon (i) the successful
completion of appropriate education and training as approved jointly by the
Department and the Board of Nursing and promulgated by the Department in rules
and regulations pursuant to section 71-3508. A nurse practitioner may direct
fluoroscopy in conjunction with a licensed medical radiographer. Dr. Dering-Anderson
asked what “direct” would mean in this context to which the applicant group
responded by saying, the nurse practitioner would allow the medical radiographer to
step on the pedal of the fluoroscopic machine. Dr. Wenner added that the medical
radiographers are licensed to run those machines and, in a circumstance where the
nurse practitioner is not at a capacity where they could operate the machine, they
would be directing them (medical radiographers) when to administer it so that they
can get the picture.

Darrell Klein suggested the applicant group could use the wording of “a nurse
practitioner can direct a medical radiographer in performance of fluoroscopy.” Mr.
Klein clarified that the CRNAs need a medical radiographer to perform the
fluoroscopic procedure. Dr. Dering- Anderson asked if there was anyone else
besides the medical radiographer that the nurse practitioners are looking to direct.
Dr. Wenner said no, just the medical radiographer. Dr. Dering-Anderson said that
there might have been some confusion around the use of direct in two separate
places, as one was clear on who would be directed while the other was not as clear.

Mr. Klein suggested that the statute and some of the regulations may not line up. Dr.
Negri said they would be willing to work with the Department to make sure they align.

Mr. Klein said his vote would be based on the concept itself rather than the language.

Dr. Negri stated that they will write in their language that what the nurse practitioners
are proposing is an entirely new chapter, separate from the CRNAs.

As the applicant group proceeded with their presentation, Dr. Negri asked if there
were any questions regarding the radiation dosage comparison table that had been
distributed to the Technical Review Committee. No one had questions about the
radiation comparisons. Mr. Klein said, at a specific part in the statutory language
provided, it says the registrant must ensure the requirements of the statute are met,
he said that it is the CRNA statute and that it must be referenced. He added that the
use of the word “conjunction” is not usual for statutory language, but he sees that the

2



CRNAs had used it too. Mr. Klein continued, saying that he thinks the preceding
language used shows that nurse practitioners can do it on their own. Dr. Negri
clarified the language recommended by committee members, “a nurse practitioner
may perform and utilize fluoroscopy for procedural guidance, and for the
performance of authorized duties upon successful completion of appropriate
education and training as approved jointly by the Department and Board of Nursing
and promulgated by the Department in rules and regulations pursuant to [specific
section]. A nurse practitioner may direct a licensed medical radiographer in the
performance of the fluoroscopy.” Members agreed that the language sounded
appropriate.

Dr. Waldron brought up concerns from DHHS legal around what is defined as
appropriate education and training. She added that she has mostly seen those types
of definitions within regulations rather than statute. The applicant group agreed.

Dr. Chasek said that in the application it says, “see section five for description of
education and training” and she was wondering what section five the applicant group
was referencing. Dr. Negri said yes, they were referring to number 5 in their revised
application. Dr. Dering-Anderson said section five does not give a description of the
education and training, it talks about what nurse practitioners do. Dr. Negri said
nurse practitioners are required to have a master’s degree. Dr. Chasek asked, does
that degree train you to do fluoroscopy. Mr. Klein helped clear up some confusion
that the application asks if the nurse practitioners would have the training and
education to perform fluoroscopy right now. He continued that the applicant group is
saying, no we are proposing you get more education and training to be able to
perform fluoroscopy. Dr. Chasek asked what is that additional education/ training. Dr.
Negri answered by saying this would include the four-hour education that they are
proposing. Mr. Klein suggested putting the following into the language: nurse
practitioners must be a registered nurse, additional training (a master’s degree or
Doctor of Nursing practice degree), and an additional four hours of training and
education as it relates to fluoroscopy.

Mr. Klein asked what the fluoroscopic use for fertility treatments is. Dr. Negri
responded by saying when they do intrauterine injections, they will require the use of
fluoroscopy for some of the procedures based on where they are trying to go inside
the uterus. Dr. Wenner added that there is another way, it could be used to evaluate
just to make sure there is no obstruction from the ovaries to the uterus, saying that
they will use some contrast to make sure that is why a patient may not be able to
conceive.

Continuing in the presentation, Dr. Negri indicated that they had contacted the
American Association of Nurse Practitioners (AANP) asking if they could find any
episodes of harm within the twenty-two states that allow nurse practitioners to use
fluoroscopy to which they could not.



Dr. Negri then asked if there were any other questions about the comprehensive
literature synthesis. There were no concerns expressed by committee members.

Mr. Klein said that some states require the passage of the ARRT (American Registry
of Radiologic Technologists) and asked what the applicant group’s thoughts were on
that and asked if that were something they would consider adding to their proposal.
Dr. Negri said that the applicant group had considered it but eventually ruled it out
because it would be exclusive to nurse practitioners and not any other discipline that
uses fluoroscopy. She added that it also requires consistent certification which is a
costly venture. Dr. Negri continued that it would be a challenging thing for them,
representing nurse practitioners for the state, to advocate for an additional cost to
providers. She added that it is a consistent recertification, much like being a
registered nurse is a certification and a license the provider must pay for, on top of a
separate APRN license. Dr. Dering-Anderson asked if they had to keep retaking a
test. Dr. Negri responded, saying no you do not have to keep taking the test, but you
must continually pay to be recertified and track your continuing education hours. Dr.
Wenner added that she thinks it would be a great exam for someone who is going to
work in interventional radiology and most nurse practitioners would likely go that path
and get more training than the proposed four hours, but it is because they are doing
many more procedures. For someone in a different specialty, it would not be
appropriate for all the contexts that fluoroscopy is being used as it would be more
pertinent to those in interventional radiology. Dr. Negri said the ARRT is not
exclusively fluoroscopy, it is all radiation modalities. She added they wanted to make
the education limited to what is appropriate and necessary since they already learn
about radiation in their (nurse practitioner) didactic training, it is more about knowing
the specifics of fluoroscopy training. Mr. Klein added that it would be a good idea to
have that in writing in their application.

Mr. Klein asked if the applicant group had found any of the other twenty-two states
that allow nurse practitioners to use fluoroscopy, if there was any exam outside of the
ARRT. Dr. Negri said no. Dr. Waldron added that she likes the idea of explaining that
the applicant group had considered the ARRT and that it is not appropriate because
it covers more than is necessary. Dr. Dering-Anderson agreed.

Mr. Klein mentioned that the applicant group had talked about UNMC’s program, and
now in the proposal it talks about the Department establishing the required
educational hours. He asked if the applicant group was okay with that. Dr. Negri
replied saying yes, they are okay with that. The applicant group had struggled to get
a hold of UNMC to get a list of their didactics.

Dr. Wienke asked if there was anything from the NMA. Dr. Negri responded, saying
that they had sent them copies of all the documents sent to the Technical Review
Committee. Dr. Dering- Anderson reminded the committee that the only problem the

4



VL.

VILI.

NMA had previously was the portion of the language relating to diagnostics that the
applicant group had removed. Mr. Klein asked Monica Gissler Webb if the Board of
Medicine had been made aware of this 407 and specifically alerted to it, both Monica
and Maggie had not heard any specifics from the Board of Medicine.

Mr. Klein asked if the applicant group had heard of any pushback regarding online
educational training programs from the Board of Medicine. Dr. Dering- Anderson said
she suspects that that will be a concern that they will raise at the public hearing for
the regulations. Dr. Negri clarified that the nurse practitioner must be board certified
which makes them adequately trained.

Dr. Chasek asked Dr. Dering-Anderson about the information she sent out to the rest
of the TRC members. Dr. Dering-Anderson said someone had sent her information
regarding nurse practitioners and radiation and so she shared the information with
the rest of the group. She said the information neither helped nor hurt the applicant
group’s proposal. Dr. McCarty asked if it was intentionally meant to bypass certain
people. Dr. Dering-Anderson said she does not know. One of the documents was
about someone practicing without a license and committee members were confused
by why that information was sent due to there not being a connection to the applicant
group’s proposal. Dr. Wenner explained that the applicant group had also received a
copy of the information sent to Dr. Dering-Anderson.

Questions from the Technical Review Committee

There were no further questions from the Technical Review Committee.

Questions or comments from interested parties and members of the public

There were no questions or comments from interested parties or members of the
public.

Requests for additional information

There were no requests for additional information.

Schedule public hearing

The committee agreed to schedule the public hearing via an online poll.

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 4:06 P.M.



